
 
Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR MEETING 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

Wednesday, September 22, 2021 
Closed Session - 6:00 PM  
Regular Session - 7:00 PM 

 

On March 17, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the Ralph 
M. Brown Act in order to allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely telephonically 

or by other electronic means. This suspension was extended by the Governor on June 11, 2021 by issuance of 
Executive Order N-08-21 which continues to allow for complete virtual City Council meetings. The purpose of 
these orders was to provide the safest environment for Council Members, staff and the public while allowing 

for public participation. 
  

Members of the public may view the meeting by attending, via telephone or computer, the Zoom Meeting 
listed below: 

 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261  
Passcode: 074407 

 
Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 One 
tap mobile 
+16699006833,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (San Jose) 
+13462487799,,81289976261#,,,,,,0#,,074407# US (Houston) 

 
Dial by your location 

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
+1 301 715 8592 US (Germantown) 

Meeting ID: 812 8997 6261 
Passcode: 074407 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc 

 

Members of the public may provide written comments by email to the City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov 
before or during the meeting. Emailed comments should include the specific agenda item on which you  are 

commenting or note that your comment concerns an item that is not on the agenda. The length of the 
emailed comment should be commensurate with the three minutes customarily allowed for verbal 

comments, which is approximately 250-300 words. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81289976261
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kco5bgxkcc
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov


Page 2 of 2 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00PM 
1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with

Labor Negotiators.

Agency Negotiator: Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees: All 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION 
• Presentation on Arboretum Day by Cypress Lawn Arboretum Director Josh Gevertz
• Introduction of New City Planner Farhad Mortazavi

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. Comments 
on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the September 8, 2021 Regular Meeting.
3. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Adjusting Salary for Part-Time Staff to Meet the Minimum Wage

Requirement Set Forth by the State of California and Amending the Salary Schedule.
NEW BUSINESS 
4. GRAND JURY RESPONSE - RACIAL IDENTITY AND PROFILING ACT

Consider: Motion Approving the Town’s Response to the Grand Jury Report Dated July 27, 2021,
Regarding “Building Better Trust Between the Community & Law Enforcement Via the Racial Identity
and Profiling Act.”

5. REPORT ON AB 361 AND EXECUTIVE ORDER REGARDING REMOTE MEETINGS
Consider: Motion to Receive a Report on Assembly Bill 361 and the Status of the Governor’s Executive
Order Regarding Remote Meetings, and Provide Input, if any.

 REPORTS 
Mayor/City Council 
City Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review on the Town’s website  
www.colma.ca.gov or at Colma Town Hall, 1198 El Camino Real, Colma, CA. Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-mail 
should call Caitlin Corley, City Clerk at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov. 

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to view 
the agenda, should direct such a request to Pak Lin, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or pak.lin@colma.ca.gov. Please allow 
two business days for your request to be processed. 

http://www.colma.ca.gov/
mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:pak.lin@colma.ca.gov


1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with
Labor Negotiators.

Agency Negotiator: Austris Rungis, IEDA 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 
Unrepresented Employees: All 

This is a Closed Session item; there is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Minutes – Regular Meeting 09.08.21 Page 1 of 6 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Meeting Held Remotely via Zoom.us 
Wednesday, September 8, 2021 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

Mayor Diana Colvin called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
Council Present – Mayor Diana Colvin, Vice Mayor Helen Fisicaro, Council Members Raquel 
Gonzalez and John Irish Goodwin were present. Council Member Joanne F. del Rosario was 
absent. 
Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Administrative 
Services Director Pak Lin, Chief of Police John Munsey, Director of Public Works Brad 
Donohue, Associate Planner Laurel Mathews, and City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in 
attendance.  
The Mayor announced, “Welcome to another of our completely remote Council Meeting. A 
few notes about tonight’s meeting: We are accepting public comments through email or the 
chat function—you can email our City Clerk at ccorley@colma.ca.gov or use the chat 
function to let her know which item you would like to speak on. Please keep your comments 
to 3 minutes or less. Thank you.” 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Colvin asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were requested. She 
asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Diana Colvin, Mayor  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel Gonzalez  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  

4 0 

PRESENTATION 

• 20th Anniversary of September 11th Terrorist Attacks
Mayor Colvin read a proclamation in honor of September 11th Remembrance Day and Day
of Service.
She then announced, “This evening, in the spirit of our National Day of Service, I wanted to
take a moment to highlight the service of several Colma residents. A team of residents,

Item #2



Minutes – Regular Meeting 09.08.21   Page 2 of 6 

lead by our very own Council Member John Goodwin, is taking part in the National First 
Responders Stair Climb, which is an annual event to raise awareness and bring support to 
First Responders who are suffering from Post Traumatic Stress Injuries (PTSI). The 
fundraising Stair Climb is held in San Francisco each year around the time of 9/11 in 
remembrance of those that gave their lives and those firefighters, police, EMS and 
dispatchers whose lives are forever affected by exposure to traumatic events. The money 
raised is used for the administration of the fund and the payment for first responders to 
attend PTSI programs. 
Team Colma includes, John Goodwin, Martha Goodwin, Sean Goodwin, Juan Fuentes, John 
Tsiglieris, Margie Tsiglieris and Judy Wedekind. Together they have raised nearly $2000 so 
far! We are so proud of this team, donating their time and energy to raise funds and to 
literally walk in the steps of our brave first responders who run towards danger in service 
of others. Thank you, Team Colma, for your hard work in honoring our first responders and 
ensuring that they have the support they need.  
The past year has been a very trying time for our country, and indeed, for the world—the 
COVID-19 pandemic, devastating natural disasters, political and civil unrest here and 
abroad. It can be difficult to be hopeful in the face of all of this strife and suffering. But, as 
we remember the pain and fear we felt on September 11, 2001, I hope we can also 
embody the bravery and unity that Americans displayed that day. In honor of those lives 
lost and sacrifices made, let’s face our current obstacles with that same courage and 
strength of character, as we work together as Americans and as citizens of the world, to 
ensure a bright future for the next generation.” 

• Ovarian Cancer and Prostate Cancer Awareness Month 
The Mayor read proclamations in honor of September as Ovarian Cancer and Prostate 
Cancer Awareness Month. 

• Honor Roll Students Recognition: 
The Mayor stated, “The Town of Colma is extremely proud of its young people and their 
academic achievements. Tonight, we are celebrating some of the bright students who have 
made the honor roll at their schools. We have prepared some gifts in recognition of their 
success: A certificate of their achievement, a Colma pen, Colma folder, Colma facemask 
and a $10 gift card to Target! Congratulations to these hardworking students and their 
families: 

o Victor Hugo Bautista 
o Daniel Ramirez 
o Elaina Gonzalez 
o Mia Myvett  
o Liana Myvett  
o Mikki M. Catimbang 
o Vernice Wang 
o Miguel A. Navarro Jr 
o Brighton Ramos Meraz 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Mayor Colvin opened the public comment period at 7:17 p.m. and seeing no one request to 
speak, she closed the public comment period. 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 09.08.21   Page 3 of 6 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the August 25, 2021 Regular Meeting. 
2. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for August 2021. 
3. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Memorandum of Understanding Between San Mateo 

County and the Town of Colma, Authorizing San Mateo County to Operate the Edible Food 
Recovery Program Within the Town of Colma.   

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to approve the consent calendar items #1 
through 3; the motion was seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the 
following vote:  

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 4 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

4. 1687 AND 1773 MISSION ROAD U-HAUL RENTAL - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
Associate Planner Laurel Mathews presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the 
public comment period at 7:26 p.m. Applicant Phillip Weaver made a comment. The Mayor 
closed the public comment period. Council discussion followed. 
Council requested that condition 3(c) be amended to include the following language: “In the 
event the Town receives complaints regarding on-street parking and/or blocking of the 
roadway or driveways in the area associated with the use granted by this use permit, the 
permittee shall be required to modify its business practices to avoid any on-street parking 
and blocking of the roadway or driveways to the satisfaction of the City Planner.  The City 
Council retains the right to modify any condition of approval and/or consider any impacts 
from this use in a future hearing on the use permit.” Council also requested the following 
new condition be added to the resolution: “The permittee shall be required to provide clear 
signage and delineation, to the satisfaction of the City Planner, to clearly mark the 
applicable parking locations for the U-Haul trucks on the property site so potential 
customers know where to park the U-Haul truck upon return.” 
Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Conditional Use 
Permit to Allow a U-Haul Rental Business With Key, Paperwork, and After-Hours Drop-Off at 
1687 Mission Road and Parking of Up to 8 Cargo Vans and Small Box Trucks at 1773 Mission 
Road (APN: 010-142-050, 010-423-040) Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301, Class 1(A), with 
the requested changes; the motion was seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried 
by the following vote:  



Minutes – Regular Meeting 09.08.21   Page 4 of 6 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 4 0    

NEW BUSINESS 
5. CONTRACT FOR BODY WORN CAMERAS, IN CAR CAMERAS, TASERS & RELATED 

CLOUD-BASED SERVICES 
Chief of Police John Munsey presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened the public 
comment period at 7:55 p.m. and seeing no one request to speak, she closed the public 
comment period. Council discussion followed. 
Action: Council Member Goodwin moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing 
the City Manager to Execute a Sole Source Contract with Axon to Purchase and Maintain 
Body Worn Cameras, in Car Cameras, Tasers and Related Cloud-Based Services; the motion 
was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the following vote:  

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 4 0    

 
6. FY 2021-22 NON-PROFIT GRANT FUNDING 

Mayor Colvin announced that to comply with Government Code section 1090, she would ask 
that any Council Members that serve as a board member or employee for any organization 
that is being considered for this item to please disclose that now. Council Member Goodwin 
stated that he had previously served on the board for the Daly City Public Library Associates 
but was no longer on the board; he believed he was allowed to participate in this item, but 
wanted to be transparent about his past association with the organization. City Attorney 
Christopher Diaz agreed that Council Member Goodwin was fine to participate, as he is no 
longer serving on the board.  
Administrative Technician Darcy De Leon presented the staff report. Mayor Colvin opened 
the public comment period at 7:55 p.m. The following people spoke: 

• ALLICE Nan Santiago, President of ALLICE 
• Cody Locklear, Daly City Peninsula Partnership Collaborative  
• Patricia deVere, Daly City Public Library Associates 



Minutes – Regular Meeting 09.08.21   Page 5 of 6 

• Laura Fanucchi, HIP Housing 
• Ariel Cherbowsky Corkidi, Director of San Bruno Mountain Watch 
• Sandie Arnott, North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City  
• Christine Kohl-Zaugg, Executive Director of Sustainable San Mateo County submitted 

a written statement, which was read aloud.  
The Mayor closed the public comment period at 8:35 p.m. Council discussion followed. 
Council made several changes to the staff recommended funding amounts, which are 
marked in red below:  

Grantee Grantee Request 
FY 2021-22 

Staff Proposed 
Grant Amount 

Approved 
Funding 

AbilityPath (Community 
Gatepath) $7,500 $6,500 $6,500 

ALLICE $1,500 $1,500 $1,500 
Clinic by the Bay $8,000 $4,000 $4,000 
CORA $10,000 $5,000 $5,000 
Daly City Peninsula Partnership 
Collaborative $25,000 $15,000 $15,000 

Daly City Public Library 
Associates $5,220 $5,220 $5,220 

Daly City Youth Health Center $20,000 $6,000 $6,000 
Human Investment Project, Inc. 
(HIP Housing) $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 

LifeMoves $5,000 $4,000 $4,000 
North Peninsula Food Pantry & 
Dining Center of Daly City $15,000 $15,000 $17,000 

Ombudsman Services SMC $3,000 $2,000 $2,500 
Operation Santa Claus $1,500 $1,500 $2,000 
Peninsula Volunteers, Inc. Meals 
on Wheels $10,000 $5,000 $5,500 

San Bruno Mountain Watch $3,500 $2,000 $2,500 
Sitike Counseling Center $8,000. $6,500 $6,500 
SMC Community College 
Foundation  $5,000 $4,000 $4,000 

SMC Jobs for Youth 4,000 $3,000 $3,000 
SMC Pride Center $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 
Sustainable San Mateo County $5,000 $1,000 $1,000 

TOTALS $145,220 $95,220 $99,220 
 
Action: Vice Mayor Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Determining Eligibility for Grant 
Funding, Approving Grants to Eligible Organizations, Finding That Each Approved Grant 
Serves a Public Purpose, and Authorizing Contracts with Each Eligible Organization for the 
Use of Town Funds; the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by 
the following vote:  



Minutes – Regular Meeting 09.08.21   Page 6 of 6 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating  
Diana Colvin, Mayor      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
 4 0    

COUNCIL CALENDARING 
The next Regular Meeting will be on Wednesday, September 22, 2021 at 7:00pm and it will 
be held remotely. 

REPORTS  

Council Member Goodwin attended the Council of Cities Dinner, hosted by Half Moon Bay on 
August 27, 2021.  
City Manager Brian Dossey gave an update on the following topics: 

 The Mayor, City Manager and Chief of Police will visit several new businesses tomorrow 
to welcome them to Town. 

 The Town Picnic will return in person on Saturday, September 11, 2021, with two lunch 
seatings to allow for social distancing.  

 There will be a Closed Session on September 22 at 6:00 p.m. 
 The Town received two very nice compliments on city staff: the Recreation Department 

received an email thanking them for the great online content they have been putting 
out during the pandemic, and the Police Department received a compliment on the new 
monthly police report. 

 Kudos to Darcy De Leon for her hard work on the Non-profit Grant Funding, which is an 
arduous annual task. Well done, Darcy! 

ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Colvin adjourned the meeting at 9:11 p.m.  

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
City Clerk 



Staff Report – Minimum Wage Adjustment for Part-Time Staff Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Pak Lin, Administrative Services Director 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: September 22, 2021 
SUBJECT: Minimum Wage Adjustment for Part-Time Staff 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION ADJUSTING SALARY FOR PART-TIME STAFF TO MEET THE MINIMUM 
WAGE REQUIREMENT SET FORTH BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND AMENDING THE 
SALARY SCHEDULE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On April 4, 2016, Governor Brown signed Senate Bill 3, which increases California’s minimum 
wage annually, reaching $15.00/hour for employers with at least 26 employees by January 1, 
2022. The schedule requires employers with 26 employees or more to maintain a minimum 
wage of $15.00/hour effective January 1, 2022.  

The positions impacted by this regulatory compliance are Recreation Leader, Senior Recreation 
Leader, Facility Attendant and Student Aide. The proposed salary schedule attached as Exhibit A 
to the Resolution meets the minimum wage requirement of $15.00/hour. It remains consistent 
with the Town’s compensation differential (pay increase formula) between steps and 
classification.  

The adoption of the resolution adjusting the  salary schedule will meet minimum wage 
requirements for 2022. Annually, Staff will continue to present to the City Council amendments 
to the salary schedule to remain in alignment with state-required minimum wage.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Though the hourly rate will increase for these specific positions, the Recreation Coordinators 
and Recreation Manager will be able to successfully manage the staffing needs while staying 
within the Recreation Department’s current  budget. If a budget adjustment is needed, Staff will 
bring it before the City Council as part of a later financial update. 

Item #3



Staff Report – Minimum Wage Adjustment for Part-Time Staff Page 2 of 3 

BACKGROUND 

On April 4, 2016, California Governor Jerry Brown signed legislation (SB 3, Leno) raising 
California’s minimum wage to $15.00/hour by 2022. After January 1, 2023, future wage 
increases are tied to inflation, reflecting increases in the Consumer Price Index up to 3.5% per 
year. Under this state law, scheduled wage increases may be temporarily suspended by the 
Governor during economic downturns. As of September 2021, the Town should presume that 
the Governor will not temporarily suspend the increase from $14.00/ hour to $15.00/hour.  

The increased minimum wage levels are applied uniformly across the state. Local governments 
retain the ability to adopt local wage ordinances that increase the minimum wage more rapidly 
than the statewide time frame or increase the minimum wage level. The law also maintains 
existing exemptions in the state’s minimum wage law. This legislation gives California one of 
the highest minimum wages in the country along with jurisdictions like Washington, New York, 
Washington, D.C., and Massachusetts. 

Positions that are affected by this law are Recreation Leader, Student Aide, Senior Recreation 
Leader and Facility Attendant. The current Step 1 hourly wage for Recreation Leader and 
Student Aide is $14.00/hour.  



Staff Report – Minimum Wage Adjustment for Part-Time Staff Page 3 of 3 

ANALYSIS 

The current pay schedule for part-time employees includes a 5% differential between steps and 
a 9% differential between classification. 

Current Pay Schedule Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 

Recreation Leader 
 and Student Aide 14.00 14.70 15.43 16.22 

Senior Recreation Leader 
 and Facility Attendant 17.73 18.61 19.54 20.52 

The proposed salary schedule sets the minimum wage at $15.00/hour and maintains the 
incremental pay increases through favorable performance. 

Effective First Pay Period 
Ending January 1  
(or December 26, 2021)  Step 1   Step 2   Step 3   Step 4 

Recreation Leader 
 and Student Aide 15.00 15.75 16.53 17.38 

Senior Recreation Leader 
 and Facility Attendant 19.00 19.94 20.94 21.99 

The first pay period ending after January 1, 2022 is January 14, 2022 – with a beginning pay 
period date of December 26, 2021. Future adjustments will be proposed annually and be 
effective on the first pay period ending after January 1 of the respective year. By updating the 
minimum wage annually, the Town’s salary schedule will align with the mandated minimum 
wage schedule in case of an economic downturn and the Governor suspends the increase for 
the upcoming year. 

Council Adopted Values 
Adoption of the attached resolution is the fair course of action because the City Council will be 
bringing the salaries in alignment with the minimum wage set forth by the State of California.  
Adoption of the resolution is also the responsible course of action because the Council is 
satsifying the requirement to meet the State minimum wage law.  

Alternatives 
The Council could choose to not adopt the proposed resolution, or to request modifications to 
the proposed salary ranges. Doing so is not recommended, as the Town could be in violation of 
State law because the salary ranges are based on meeting the minimum wage requirements set 
forth by the State of California.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution (includes Salary Schedule) 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res. 2021-__, Minimum Wage Adjustment for Part-Time Staff Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-XX 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION ADJUSTING SALARY FOR PART-TIME STAFF TO MEET THE MINIMUM 
WAGE REQUIREMENT SET FORTH BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA AND AMENDING 

THE SALARY SCHEDULE 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) On April 4, 2016, Governor Brown signed Senate Bill 3, which increases California’s 
minimum wage annually, potentially reaching $15.00/hour for employers with at least 26 
employees by January 1, 2022. 

(b) The part-time recreation salary ranges may eventually be below any potentially increased 
state minimum wage, as it increases into the future. 

(c) In order to ensure compliance with state law, the City Manager is, as he has in previous 
years, recommending that the City Council adjust the salary schedule as provided for in this 
Resolution, and continually adjust the salary on an annual basis to ensure compliance with state 
required minimum wage law. 

2. Salary Scale for Part-Time Staff (including Student Aide/Recreation Leader and
Senior Recreation Leader/Facility Attendant). The Town shall pay the part-time 
staff, the respective hourly salaries shown below, with the City Manager determining the 
appropriate step in accordance with Subchapter 3.02 of the Colma Administrative Code relating 
to Employment (See Exhibit A for Full Salary Schedule): 

Student Aide/Recreation Leader  
STEP 1 2 3 4 

15.00 15.75 16.53 17.38 

Senior Recreation Leader/Facility Attendant  
STEP 1 2 3 4 

19.00 19.94 20.94 21.99 

3. Salary Schedule Adopted.

(a) The City Council hereby amends the pay or salary schedule, as detailed in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated by reference, to memorialize the changes proposed by this 
Resolution, with the applicable pay or salary for each position listed, in compliance with Title 2 of 
the California Code of Regulations Section 570.5.  

Attachment A



Res. 2021-__, Minimum Wage Adjustment for Part-Time Staff Page 2 of 2 

(b) No changes in pay or salary are proposed for those positions on the pay or salary schedule, 
except for the part-time staff, as set by this Resolution. 

4. No Contract. Nothing herein shall be construed as a contract with any employee, and
the City Council shall have the discretion to modify the respective salaries in accordance with any 
applicable state or local provisions. 

5. Effective Date.  This resolution shall become effective upon adoption.

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2021-__ was duly adopted at a regular meeting of said 
City Council held on September 22, 2021 by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Diana Colvin, Mayor 
Helen Fisicaro 
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez 
Joanne F. del Rosario 
John Irish Goodwin 
Voting Tally 

Dated ______________________ ___________________________________ 
Diana Colvin, Mayor 

Attest:   ____________________________ 
 Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 



Town of Colma Pay Schedule (Effective Date @ December 26, 2021) Exhibit A to Resolution
Proposed Resolution September 22, 2021

1 2 3 4 5 6

Position Title  Step 1  Step 2  Step 3  Step 4  Step 5  Step 6 
 Ord/Reso 
Number 

 Add'l 
Incentive 

 Payroll 
Ref 

Elected Officials (Monthly Compensation)
Mayor & City Council 961.00      ORD 784

Regular/Casual/Temporary Employees (hourly rate, compensated on a biweekly basis)
Accounting Technician 40.51        42.54        44.67        46.91        49.26        -           Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8acct

Administrative Services Director 76.14        79.95        83.94        88.14        92.55        -           Reso 2019-16 (11) 8acm

Administrative Technician I 37.81        39.71        41.70        43.77        45.96        -           Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at1

Administrative Technician II 39.71        41.70        43.77        45.96        48.26        -           Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at2

Administrative Technician III 39.71        41.70        43.77        45.96        48.26        50.67        Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at3

City Clerk 50.67        53.20        55.86        58.65        61.58        -           Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8clrk1

City Manager 107.40      Reso 2019-57 (9) mgr

Community Service Officer 36.89        38.73        40.67        42.71        44.84        -           Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8cso

Executive Assistant to Chief of Police 39.71        41.70        43.77        45.96        48.26        50.67        Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8at3

Facility Attendant 19.00        19.94        20.94        21.99        -           -           Reso 2021-xx (11) 8fa

Human Resources Manager 55.51        58.29        61.20        64.26        67.47        -           Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8hrm

Intern 17.00        19.00        21.00        23.00        25.00        Reso 2020-07 intr

Maintenance Technician I 36.98        38.82        40.76        42.80        44.94        -           Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mt1

Maintenance Technician II 38.82        40.76        42.80        44.94        47.19        -           Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mt2

Maintenance Technician III 38.82        40.76        42.80        44.94        47.19        49.56        Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mt3

Management Analyst I 42.11        44.21        46.42        48.74        51.18        Reso 2021-03 (11)

Management Analyst II 45.54        47.81        50.21        52.72        55.35        Reso 2021-03 (11)

Management Analyst IIII 49.25        51.71        54.30        57.01        59.86        Reso 2021-03 (11)

Police Chief 82.57        86.70        91.04        94.68        98.26        Reso 2020-32 (1)(11) chief

Police Commander 74.79        78.52        82.46        86.57        90.90        -           Reso 2019-16 (1)(11) 8pcmd

Police Dispatcher / Clerk 46.15        47.44        48.72        50.00        51.27        -           Reso 2019-15 (6)(4)(11) clerical

Police Dispatcher/Records Supervisor 55.62        57.16        58.72        60.26        61.81        -           Reso 2019-15 (2)(4)(11) supervisor

Police Officer - Reserve 51.65        Ord 773 pdres

Police Officer 1 51.65        54.23        56.95        59.79        -           -           Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8po1

Police Officer 2 53.71        56.40        59.22        62.19        -           -           Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8po2

Police Officer 3 54.75        57.50        60.37        63.38        -           -           Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8po3

Police Sergeant 1 65.47        66.82        68.20        71.97        -           -           Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8sgt1

Police Sergeant 2 68.08        69.49        70.92        74.85        -           -           Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8sgt2

Police Sergeant 3 69.38        70.82        72.28        76.30        -           -           Reso 2019-14 (1)(3)(5)(11) 8sgt3

Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 47.21        49.57        52.05        54.66        57.38        -           Reso 2019-16 (7)(8)(10)(11) 8mts

Recreation Coordinator 36.87        38.72        40.66        42.68        44.81        -           Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) 8recc

Recreation Leader 15.00        15.75        16.53        17.38        -           -           Reso 2021-xx (11) 8rl

Recreation Manager 44.07        46.27        48.58        51.02        53.56        -           Reso 2019-16 (10)(11) recmgr

Senior Recreation Leader 19.00        19.94        20.94        21.99        -           -           Reso 2021-xx (11) 8rls

Student Aide 15.00        15.75        16.53        17.38        Reso 2021-xx

Additional Incentive
(1) These positions receive a $1,025 per year uniform allowance 

(2) This position receives a 5.0%  incentive for CAD Administrator

(3) These positions receive an additional 5% Holiday Pay

(4) These positions receive a $774.73 per year uniform allowance

(5) These positions may receive a 5% incentive for Acting Commander, Acting Sergeant, 

Officer in Charge, Training Officer, and/or Detective

(6) This position may receive a 2.5%  incentive for Back-up CAD Administrator

(7) These positions may receive $120 per week stand-by pay

(8) These positions receive an in kind uniform  allowance of $68.67 per pay period

(9) This position receives a $300 monthly automobile allowance

(10) These positions may received 5% out of class pay

(11) These positions may receive retention pay (2.5% @ 10 years; 5.0% @ 20 years)

Summary of Effective Ordinance and Resolution
Ord 773 Reinstatement of Reserve Officer Program - up to 4 Reserve Officers (Adopted 12/13/2017)

Ord 784 City Council Compensation (Adopted 11/14/2018)

Reso 2004-36 Establishment of Police Recruit Program - 95% of Police Officer Step 1 (5/12/2004)

Reso 2019-14 2% COLA for POA from Jun 28, 2020 to Dec 26, 2020 (Adopted 4/10/2019)

Reso 2019-15 2% COLA for CRA from Jun 28, 2020 to Dec 26, 2020 (Adopted 4/10/2019)

Reso 2019-16 2% COLA for Unrepresented from Jun 28, 2020 to Dec 26, 2020 (Adopted 4/10/2019)

Reso 2019-56 Chief of Police Contract Amendment 5 (Adopted 12/11/2019)

Reso 2019-57 City Manager Contract Amendment 3 (Adopted 12/11/2019)

Reso 2020-07 Addition of Intern and Student Aide Classifications and Compensations (Adopted 2/26/2020)

Reso 2020-32 Reclassify Chief of Police position from contract to appointed by City Manager (CC Mtg 7/8/2020)

Reso 2021-03 Additional of Management Analyst I/II/III Series (CC Mtg 01/13/2021)

Reso 2021-xx Minimum Wage Adjustment for Part-Time Staff (CC Mtg 9/22/2021)





Grand Jury Report – Racial Identity and Profiling Act  Page 1 

STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  John Munsey, Chief of Police 

VIA:        Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 22, 2021 

SUBJECT: Grand Jury Response – Racial Identity and Profiling Act 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council make the following motion: 

MOTION APPROVING THE TOWN’S RESPONSE TO THE GRAND JURY REPORT DATED 
JULY 27, 2021, REGARDING “BUILDING BETTER TRUST BETWEEN THE COMMUNITY & 
LAW ENFORCEMENT VIA THE RACIAL IDENTITY AND PROFILING ACT”  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City Council is required under California Penal Code section 933.05 to respond to the Grand 
Jury Report. The Grand Jury Report is attached as Attachment A, and the Town’s draft response 
letter is attached as Attachment B. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no fiscal implications associated with the approval of the Town’s response to the 
Grand Jury report. 

BACKGROUND 

The San Mateo County Grand Jury is a volunteer body of 19 citizens, selected at random from a 
pool of nominees, to investigate local governmental agencies and make recommendations to 
improve the efficiency of local government. The July 27, 2021 Grand Jury report contains 
findings and recommendations on a number of subjects that are applicable to agencies in San 
Mateo County – namely, findings and recommendations pertaining to the Racial Identity and 
Profiling Act, or “RIPA.” The Presiding Judge of the County Superior Court has formally 
requested that the Town review the report and file a written response indicating the following: 

• That the Town agrees or disagrees, in whole or in part, with the findings;

Item #4



Grand Jury Report – Racial Identity and Profiling Act  Page 2 

• That the recommendation has been implemented, will be implemented, requires further
analysis, or will not be implemented; and

• An explanation of the reason for any disagreement with findings or recommendations;

• The response was approved by your governing body at a public meeting.

ANALYSIS 

Grand Jury Findings 

The proposed September 22, 2021 Grand Jury response, which includes responses to each of 
the Grand Jury’s findings and recommendations, is attached as Attachment B. 

Council Adopted Values 

Approving the Town’s Grand Jury response displays the VISION of the Town to consider the 
broader regional and statewide implications of the agency’s decisions and issues as they apply 
to the study of the Racial Identity and Profiling.   

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council approve, by motion, the Town’s proposed response to 
the July 27, 2021 Grand Jury report regarding “Building Better Trust Between the Community & 
Law Enforcement via the Racial Identity and Profiling Act.” 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Copy of Grand Jury report 
B. Town’s draft response letter for July 27, 2021 Grand Jury report 



TOWN OF COLMA 
1198 El Camino Real • Colma, California • 94014-3212 

Tel 650.997.8300 • Fax 650.997.8308 

Diana Colvin, Mayor 
Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor 

Raquel P. Gonzalez, Council Member • Joanne F. del Rosario, Council Member •John Irish Goodwin, Council 
Member •Brian Dossey, City Manager 

September 22, 2021 

Honorable Amarra A. Lee 
Judge of the Superior Court 
c/o Jenarda Dubois 
Hall of Justice 
400 County Center; 8th Floor 
Redwood City, CA 94063-1655 

Re: Grand Jury Report: “Building Greater Trust Between the Community & Law Enforcement via 
the Racial Identity and Profiling Act” 

Dear Judge Lee; 

The City Council received the July 27th, 2021 San Mateo Civil Grand Jury report titled, “Building 
Greater Trust Between the Community & Law Enforcement via the Racial Identity and Profiling 
Act.”  

The Town of Colma was requested to submit comments regarding the findings and 
recommendations no later than October 27, 2021. 

The City Council of the Town of Colma has reviewed the recommendations in the Grand Jury 
Report that affect the Town and approved the responses at its public meeting on September 22, 
2021. 

Findings: 

The Town agrees with findings F1, F2, F3, F4, F6 and F8.  The Town partially agrees with findings 
F5 as follows: 

F5:  Some LEAs mistakenly believe the County Dispatch System will handle their RIPA data 
collection.  

Response: The Town of Colma partially agrees with this finding. The Town of Colma is aware 
that the County Dispatch System will not handle its RIPA data collection, but currently the Town 
does not have specific information regarding the collection expectations of other municipalities 
who utilize San Mateo County Communications.   

Recommendations: 

R1. Each LEA must have a fully developed implementation plan for complying with RIPA. The 
plan should include data collection and reporting, training methods, policies and procedures, 

Attachment A



Diana Colvin, Mayor 
Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor 

Raquel P. Gonzalez, Council Member • Joanne F. del Rosario, Council Member •John Irish Goodwin, Council 
Member •Brian Dossey, City Manager 

 Page 2 of 3 

roll-out plans, personnel allocation, systems testing and data auditing. The plan should be 
reviewed and approved by October 30, 2021.  

Response:  

The recommendation has been implemented.  As of July 7, 2021, the entire Colma Police 
Department, including police officers, supervisors, dispatchers, command, and executive staff 
have been trained in the implementation and collection of RIPA data.  The collection of data is 
currently in the testing processes with the expectation that all officers are currently collecting 
data. The Town therefore has a fully developed implementation plan for RIPA compliance which 
has been reviewed and approved in advance of the October 30, 2021 deadline. 

R2. Each LEA needs to acquire the necessary software and hardware required to comply with 
RIPA by October 30, 2021, to complete testing within 30 days and to go live by January 1, 
2022.  

Response: 

The recommendation has been implemented. The Colma Police Department currently utilizes 
the RIMS Management System by Sun Ridge Systems, Inc. in conjunction with the South San 
Francisco Police Department.  Upgrades to the information management system have been 
implemented by Sun Ridge Systems to allow for the collection, storage, and dissemination of 
data. The Town therefore has all necessary software and hardware required to comply with 
RIPA in advance of the January 1, 2022 deadline.  

R3. Each LEA must test and confirm their readiness for RIPA data collection by November 30, 
2021. 

Response: 

The recommendation has been implemented.  As stated above the Colma Police Department 
began collecting data and testing the system since early July, 2021.   

R4. Each LEA should provide regular updates to their governing entities, on their progress 
toward preparing for the required RIPA data collection starting on October 15, 2021.  

Response: 

The recommendation has been implemented.  The City Council is to be informed via the City 
Manager who will be given updates from the Colma Chief of Police.    

R5. Each LEA should, on a quarterly basis, starting in the second quarter of 2022, provide 
reports on RIPA data and how it is being used to address potential identity biases, including 
supervisory oversight (as defined by the RIPA Board). The report should be posted and easily 
viewable on the entity’s website. 

Response: 

The recommendation requires further analysis.  At this time, it is the Town’s understanding that  
all data is going to be collected and disseminated by the California Department of Justice.  Once 
the Town of Colma can visualize / understand the manner in which the DOJ will make RIPA 
data available, we will in turn make a determination on whether to forward the data and report  



Diana Colvin, Mayor 
Helen Fisicaro, Vice Mayor 

Raquel P. Gonzalez, Council Member • Joanne F. del Rosario, Council Member •John Irish Goodwin, Council 
Member •Brian Dossey, City Manager 

 Page 3 of 3 

to DOJ via the Town’s website, or create our own method of reporting the data, along with its 
utilization. 

R6. By February 1, 2022, each LEA should begin considering how to obtain and use insights 
gained from the RIPA data to improve the operation of its department by combating implicit 
bias in policing and pursuing greater community trust by implementing the RIPA Board’s 
growing list of policing best practices.  

Response: 

The recommendation has not yet been implemented.  The Town of Colma has every intention 
of utilizing the insights gained through the RIPA data to improve the operations of the police 
department.  The Town of Colma will need to evaluate the data once obtained to proceed with 
any substantial change to policy or procedure.  The uniqueness of the Town of Colma, having 
under 2000 residents but as many as 30,000 people a day coming into the town, creates a 
challenge as to how to set a baseline for statistical analysis.  The demographics of people 
coming into the Town of Colma may be different than the demographics of the Town.  For this 
reason, the Town of Colma may be looking at regional demographics as opposed to strictly 
Town of Colma resident demographics to make an evaluation on policy. Nevertheless, the Town 
is committed to implementing this recommendation and plans to comply by beginning to 
consider using insights gained from RIPA data to improve its police department’s operation by 
February 1, 2022.      

R7. By February 1, 2022, each LEA should consider community engagement and transparency, 
including the possible use of “academics, police commissions, civilian review bodies, or advisory 
boards” as a mechanism to build community trust and provide bias-free policing.  

Response: 

The recommendation has not yet been implemented.  The Town of Colma agrees with the 
recommendation and once the data is collected, looks forward to working with a multitude of 
entities who can give us insight into the meaning of our data.    

The Town appreciates the efforts of the Grand Jury. Please contact City Manager Brian Dossey 
should you require any additional information. He can be reached at (650) 997-8318 or by email: 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Diana Colvin 
Mayor 





Attachment B

































































































25977.00100\34360547.1 
Staff Report AB 361 and Remote Meetings  Page 1 of 3 
 

STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 
FROM:  Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 
VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 
MEETING DATE: September 22, 2021 
SUBJECT: Receive a Report on AB 361 and Status of Governor’s Executive Order 

Regarding Remote Meetings 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council: 

RECEIVE A REPORT ON ASSEMBLY BILL 361 AND THE STATUS OF THE GOVERNOR’S 
EXECUTIVE ORDER REGARDING REMOTE MEETINGS, AND PROVIDE INPUT, IF ANY 

BACKGROUND 

On March 17, 2020, in the face of the COVID-19 pandemic, Governor Gavin Newsom issued 
Executive Order N-29-20 suspending certain provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act in order to 
allow for local legislative bodies to conduct their meetings completely telephonically or by other 
electronic means. As the City Council is well aware, this allowed City Council meetings to be 
conducted by Zoom with councilmembers and staff all joining from remote virtual locations. 

The suspension of certain provisions of the Brown Act was further extended by the Governor on 
June 11, 2021 by the issuance of Executive Order N-08-21 which continued to allow for 
complete virtual City Council meetings until September 30, 2021.  There has been no clear 
indication from the Governor, as of the date this report was prepared, as to whether he will 
further extend this Executive Order.   

With the current pending expiration of the Governor’s Executive Order along with the 
uncertainty that surrounded the Governor’s potential recall, the State Legislature also took the 
remote meeting issue into its own hands through the adoption of Assembly Bill 361. The 
Governor recently signed AB 361 into law on Thursday September 16, 2021. AB 361 was passed 
with urgency findings so upon the Governor’s signature, it became effective immediately. 

ANALYSIS 

AB 361 now allows local government to continue to conduct remote virtual meetings so long as 
there is a state-proclaimed state of emergency, but it isn’t quite as flexible as it has been under 
the Executive Order. 

Item #5



25977.00100\34360547.1 
Staff Report AB 361 and Remote Meetings  Page 2 of 3 
 

As part of a package of executive orders adopted soon after the beginning of the COVID-19 
pandemic, Executive Order N-29-20 allowed local governments to meet remotely without having 
to adhere to all of the traditional teleconferencing rules that had been part of the Brown Act for 
decades, including public posting of agendas at the location of remote participation by members 
of the legislative body and public access to those locations. With the assistance of 
teleconferencing and remote video technology, local governments statewide have been able to 
continue the business of the people while following mandated protocols against indoor 
gatherings. At the same time, interested members of the public could virtually attend meetings 
safely from home and offer public comment using a variety of methods, from emails to 
voicemails and video participation. 

With the end of the Executive Order looming, AB 361 allows for some virtual meetings still, with 
a few more restrictions.  In particular, the bill amends the Brown Act to allow local legislative 
bodies to continue using teleconferencing and virtual meeting technology as long as there is a 
gubernatorial “proclaimed state of emergency.” But this allowance also depends two factors: 

• Whether state or local officials are imposing or recommending measures that promote
social distancing; or

• Whether a legislative body can make findings that meeting in person would present an
imminent safety risk to attendees.

Though adopted in the context of the pandemic, AB 361 will allow for virtual meetings during 
other state-proclaimed emergencies, such as earthquakes or wildfires, where physical 
attendance may present a risk. 

Another key difference between the Executive Order and AB 361 is that AB 361 requires a 
public comment period where the public can address the legislative body directly. It expressly 
prohibits councils and boards from limiting public comments to only comments submitted in 
advance and specifies that the legislative body “must provide an opportunity for the public to … 
offer comment in real time.” Additionally, the body must allow for public comment up until the 
public comment period is closed at the meetings. The agenda must include information on the 
manner in which the public may access the meeting and provide comments remotely, and if 
technical problems arise that result in the public’s access being disrupted, the legislative body 
may not take any vote or other official action until the technical disruption is corrected and 
public access is restored. 

Finally, AB 361 will sunset on January 1, 2024, and requires the legislative body to make 
findings by majority vote that the state of emergency still exists and continues to directly impact 
the ability of the members to meet safely in person, or that officials continue to impose or 
recommend measures to promote social distancing. 

To sum up, cities that want to continue holding virtual meetings or allowing remote 
participation by the public under the Brown Act should ensure that the public can make real-
time comments up until the close of the public-comment period. Limiting comment to emails 
sent at least an hour before the meeting starts will no longer be acceptable. And the Town 
should push pause if there is a technical disruption as under AB 361, we should not hold a vote 
until the public is fully able to access the meeting. 



25977.00100\34360547.1 
Staff Report AB 361 and Remote Meetings  Page 3 of 3 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There are no financial impacts associated with the City Council receiving this report and 
providing any input.  If the Governor’s Executive Order does expire, there may be some staff 
costs in the event the Town needs to make findings at the local level under AB 361 to continue 
to justify the remote virtual meeting format. 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

The City Council’s receipt of this report will have no impacts on the environment under the 
California Environmental Quality Act pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) as no change is 
anticipated to occur with the Town’s current meeting format. 

Council Adopted Values 

The City Council’s receipt of this report is consistent with both the values of vision and 
respect as it is looking to the future to determine what will make the best sense based on 
current health conditions and is respectful of the health of all in looking at options for future 
meetings. 

Sustainability Impact 

Continuing with remote meetings could have a positive impact on sustainability as there would 
be less traveling associated with City Council meetings. 

Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to receive the report.  Doing so is not recommended, 
however, as the City Council will be missing out on a pertinent and relevant legal update on 
how the Town can conduct its public meetings. 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should receive the report, discuss, and provide any input to staff. 





Assembly Bill No. 361 

Passed the Assembly  September 10, 2021 

Chief Clerk of the Assembly 

Passed the Senate  September 10, 2021 

Secretary of the Senate 

This bill was received by the Governor this  day 

of , 2021, at  o’clock m.

Private Secretary of the Governor 

Attachment A



CHAPTER 

An act to add and repeal Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, 
and to amend, repeal, and add Section 54953 of, and to add and 
repeal Section 11133 of, the Government Code, relating to open 
meetings, and declaring the urgency thereof, to take effect 
immediately. 

legislative counsel’s digest 

AB 361, Robert Rivas. Open meetings: state and local agencies: 
teleconferences. 

(1)  Existing law, the Ralph M. Brown Act requires, with 
specified exceptions, that all meetings of a legislative body of a 
local agency, as those terms are defined, be open and public and 
that all persons be permitted to attend and participate. The act 
contains specified provisions regarding the timelines for posting 
an agenda and providing for the ability of the public to directly 
address the legislative body on any item of interest to the public. 
The act generally requires all regular and special meetings of the 
legislative body be held within the boundaries of the territory over 
which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, subject to certain 
exceptions. The act allows for meetings to occur via 
teleconferencing subject to certain requirements, particularly that 
the legislative body notice each teleconference location of each 
member that will be participating in the public meeting, that each 
teleconference location be accessible to the public, that members 
of the public be allowed to address the legislative body at each 
teleconference location, that the legislative body post an agenda 
at each teleconference location, and that at least a quorum of the 
legislative body participate from locations within the boundaries 
of the local agency’s jurisdiction. The act provides an exemption 
to the jurisdictional requirement for health authorities, as defined. 
The act authorizes the district attorney or any interested person, 
subject to certain provisions, to commence an action by mandamus 
or injunction for the purpose of obtaining a judicial determination 
that specified actions taken by a legislative body are null and void. 

Existing law, the California Emergency Services Act, authorizes 
the Governor, or the Director of Emergency Services when the 

93 

— 2 — AB 361 

  



governor is inaccessible, to proclaim a state of emergency under 
specified circumstances. 

Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the Ralph M. Brown 
Act’s requirements for teleconferencing during the COVID-19 
pandemic provided that notice and accessibility requirements are 
met, the public members are allowed to observe and address the 
legislative body at the meeting, and that a legislative body of a 
local agency has a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving 
requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals with 
disabilities, as specified. 

This bill, until January 1, 2024, would authorize a local agency 
to use teleconferencing without complying with the 
teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. Brown 
Act when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting 
during a declared state of emergency, as that term is defined, when 
state or local health officials have imposed or recommended 
measures to promote social distancing, during a proclaimed state 
of emergency held for the purpose of determining, by majority 
vote, whether meeting in person would present imminent risks to 
the health or safety of attendees, and during a proclaimed state of 
emergency when the legislative body has determined that meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees, as provided. 

This bill would require legislative bodies that hold 
teleconferenced meetings under these abbreviated teleconferencing 
procedures to give notice of the meeting and post agendas, as 
described, to allow members of the public to access the meeting 
and address the legislative body, to give notice of the means by 
which members of the public may access the meeting and offer 
public comment, including an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option, and to 
conduct the meeting in a manner that protects the statutory and 
constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before 
the legislative body. The bill would require the legislative body 
to take no further action on agenda items when there is a disruption 
which prevents the public agency from broadcasting the meeting, 
or in the event of a disruption within the local agency’s control 
which prevents members of the public from offering public 
comments, until public access is restored. The bill would specify 

93 

AB 361 — 3 — 

  



that actions taken during the disruption are subject to challenge 
proceedings, as specified. 

This bill would prohibit the legislative body from requiring 
public comments to be submitted in advance of the meeting and 
would specify that the legislative body must provide an opportunity 
for the public to address the legislative body and offer comment 
in real time. The bill would prohibit the legislative body from 
closing the public comment period and the opportunity to register 
to provide public comment, until the public comment period has 
elapsed or until a reasonable amount of time has elapsed, as 
specified. When there is a continuing state of emergency, or when 
state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures 
to promote social distancing, the bill would require a legislative 
body to make specified findings not later than 30 days after the 
first teleconferenced meeting pursuant to these provisions, and to 
make those findings every 30 days thereafter, in order to continue 
to meet under these abbreviated teleconferencing procedures. 

Existing law prohibits a legislative body from requiring, as a 
condition to attend a meeting, a person to register the person’s 
name, or to provide other information, or to fulfill any condition 
precedent to the person’s attendance. 

This bill would exclude from that prohibition, a registration 
requirement imposed by a third-party internet website or other 
online platform not under the control of the legislative body. 

(2)  Existing law, the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act, requires, 
with specified exceptions, that all meetings of a state body be open 
and public and all persons be permitted to attend any meeting of 
a state body. The act requires at least one member of the state body 
to be physically present at the location specified in the notice of 
the meeting. 

The Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20 suspends the 
requirements of the Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act for 
teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic, provided that 
notice and accessibility requirements are met, the public members 
are allowed to observe and address the state body at the meeting, 
and that a state body has a procedure for receiving and swiftly 
resolving requests for reasonable accommodation for individuals 
with disabilities, as specified. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to 
specified notice and accessibility requirements, a state body to 

93 

— 4 — AB 361 

  



hold public meetings through teleconferencing and to make public 
meetings accessible telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to 
all members of the public seeking to observe and to address the 
state body. With respect to a state body holding a public meeting 
pursuant to these provisions, the bill would suspend certain 
requirements of existing law, including the requirements that each 
teleconference location be accessible to the public and that 
members of the public be able to address the state body at each 
teleconference location. Under the bill, a state body that holds a 
meeting through teleconferencing and allows members of the 
public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 
otherwise electronically would satisfy any requirement that the 
state body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and 
offer public comment. The bill would require that each state body 
that holds a meeting through teleconferencing provide notice of 
the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. The bill would urge 
state bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in the bill 
to use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to adhere 
as closely as reasonably possible to existing law, as provided. 

(3)  Existing law establishes the various campuses of the 
California State University under the administration of the Trustees 
of the California State University, and authorizes the establishment 
of student body organizations in connection with the operations 
of California State University campuses. 

The Gloria Romero Open Meetings Act of 2000 generally 
requires a legislative body, as defined, of a student body 
organization to conduct its business in a meeting that is open and 
public. The act authorizes the legislative body to use 
teleconferencing, as defined, for the benefit of the public and the 
legislative body in connection with any meeting or proceeding 
authorized by law. 

This bill, until January 31, 2022, would authorize, subject to 
specified notice and accessibility requirements, a legislative body, 
as defined for purposes of the act, to hold public meetings through 
teleconferencing and to make public meetings accessible 
telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all members of the 
public seeking to observe and to address the legislative body. With 
respect to a legislative body holding a public meeting pursuant to 
these provisions, the bill would suspend certain requirements of 
existing law, including the requirements that each teleconference 

93 

AB 361 — 5 — 

  



location be accessible to the public and that members of the public 
be able to address the legislative body at each teleconference 
location. Under the bill, a legislative body that holds a meeting 
through teleconferencing and allows members of the public to 
observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise 
electronically would satisfy any requirement that the legislative 
body allow members of the public to attend the meeting and offer 
public comment. The bill would require that each legislative body 
that holds a meeting through teleconferencing provide notice of 
the meeting, and post the agenda, as provided. The bill would urge 
legislative bodies utilizing these teleconferencing procedures in 
the bill to use sound discretion and to make reasonable efforts to 
adhere as closely as reasonably possible to existing law, as 
provided. 

(4)  This bill would declare the Legislature’s intent, consistent 
with the Governor’s Executive Order No. N-29-20, to improve 
and enhance public access to state and local agency meetings 
during the COVID-19 pandemic and future emergencies by 
allowing broader access through teleconferencing options. 

(5)  This bill would incorporate additional changes to Section 
54953 of the Government Code proposed by AB 339 to be 
operative only if this bill and AB 339 are enacted and this bill is 
enacted last. 

(6)  The California Constitution requires local agencies, for the 
purpose of ensuring public access to the meetings of public bodies 
and the writings of public officials and agencies, to comply with 
a statutory enactment that amends or enacts laws relating to public 
records or open meetings and contains findings demonstrating that 
the enactment furthers the constitutional requirements relating to 
this purpose. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 
(7)  Existing constitutional provisions require that a statute that 

limits the right of access to the meetings of public bodies or the 
writings of public officials and agencies be adopted with findings 
demonstrating the interest protected by the limitation and the need 
for protecting that interest. 

This bill would make legislative findings to that effect. 
(8)  This bill would declare that it is to take effect immediately 

as an urgency statute. 

93 

— 6 — AB 361 

  



The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 

SECTION 1. Section 89305.6 is added to the Education Code, 
to read: 

89305.6. (a)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
article, and subject to the notice and accessibility requirements in 
subdivisions (d) and (e), a legislative body may hold public 
meetings through teleconferencing and make public meetings 
accessible telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all 
members of the public seeking to observe and to address the 
legislative body. 

(b)  (1)  For a legislative body holding a public meeting through 
teleconferencing pursuant to this section, all requirements in this 
article requiring the physical presence of members, the clerk or 
other personnel of the legislative body, or the public, as a condition 
of participation in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby 
suspended. 

(2)  For a legislative body holding a public meeting through 
teleconferencing pursuant to this section, all of the following 
requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A)  Each teleconference location from which a member will be 
participating in a public meeting or proceeding be identified in the 
notice and agenda of the public meeting or proceeding. 

(B)  Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 
(C)  Members of the public may address the legislative body at 

each teleconference conference location. 
(D)  Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 
(E)  At least one member of the legislative body be physically 

present at the location specified in the notice of the meeting. 
(c)  A legislative body that holds a meeting through 

teleconferencing and allows members of the public to observe and 
address the meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically, 
consistent with the notice and accessibility requirements in 
subdivisions (d) and (e), shall have satisfied any requirement that 
the legislative body allow members of the public to attend the 
meeting and offer public comment. A legislative body need not 
make available any physical location from which members of the 
public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. 

(d)  If a legislative body holds a meeting through 
teleconferencing pursuant to this section and allows members of 

93 

AB 361 — 7 — 

  



the public to observe and address the meeting telephonically or 
otherwise electronically, the legislative body shall also do both of 
the following: 

(1)  Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving 
requests for reasonable modification or accommodation from 
individuals with disabilities, consistent with the federal Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 
resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2)  Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the 
means by which members of the public may observe the meeting 
and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision 
(e). 

(e)  Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each 
legislative body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing 
pursuant to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1)  Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, 
each public meeting according to the timeframes otherwise 
prescribed by this article, and using the means otherwise prescribed 
by this article, as applicable. 

(2)  In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting 
is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 
posted, also give notice of the means by which members of the 
public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to 
any instance in which there is a change in the means of public 
observation and comment, or any instance prior to the effective 
date of this section in which the time of the meeting has been 
noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also 
including notice of the means of public observation and comment, 
a legislative body may satisfy this requirement by advertising the 
means of public observation and comment using the most rapid 
means of communication available at the time. Advertising the 
means of public observation and comment using the most rapid 
means of communication available at the time shall include, but 
need not be limited to, posting such means on the legislative body’s 
internet website. 

(f)  All legislative bodies utilizing the teleconferencing 
procedures in this section are urged to use sound discretion and to 
make reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably possible 
to the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to 

93 

— 8 — AB 361 

  



maximize transparency and provide the public access to legislative 
body meetings. 

(g)  This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 
2022, and as of that date is repealed. 

SEC. 2. Section 11133 is added to the Government Code, to 
read: 

11133. (a)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this article, 
and subject to the notice and accessibility requirements in 
subdivisions (d) and (e), a state body may hold public meetings 
through teleconferencing and make public meetings accessible 
telephonically, or otherwise electronically, to all members of the 
public seeking to observe and to address the state body. 

(b)  (1)  For a state body holding a public meeting through 
teleconferencing pursuant to this section, all requirements in this 
article requiring the physical presence of members, the clerk or 
other personnel of the state body, or the public, as a condition of 
participation in or quorum for a public meeting, are hereby 
suspended. 

(2)  For a state body holding a public meeting through 
teleconferencing pursuant to this section, all of the following 
requirements in this article are suspended: 

(A)  Each teleconference location from which a member will be 
participating in a public meeting or proceeding be identified in the 
notice and agenda of the public meeting or proceeding. 

(B)  Each teleconference location be accessible to the public. 
(C)  Members of the public may address the state body at each 

teleconference conference location. 
(D)  Post agendas at all teleconference locations. 
(E)  At least one member of the state body be physically present 

at the location specified in the notice of the meeting. 
(c)  A state body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing 

and allows members of the public to observe and address the 
meeting telephonically or otherwise electronically, consistent with 
the notice and accessibility requirements in subdivisions (d) and 
(e), shall have satisfied any requirement that the state body allow 
members of the public to attend the meeting and offer public 
comment. A state body need not make available any physical 
location from which members of the public may observe the 
meeting and offer public comment. 

93 

AB 361 — 9 — 

  



(d)  If a state body holds a meeting through teleconferencing 
pursuant to this section and allows members of the public to 
observe and address the meeting telephonically or otherwise 
electronically, the state body shall also do both of the following: 

(1)  Implement a procedure for receiving and swiftly resolving 
requests for reasonable modification or accommodation from 
individuals with disabilities, consistent with the federal Americans 
with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12101 et seq.), and 
resolving any doubt whatsoever in favor of accessibility. 

(2)  Advertise that procedure each time notice is given of the 
means by which members of the public may observe the meeting 
and offer public comment, pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision 
(e). 

(e)  Except to the extent this section provides otherwise, each 
state body that holds a meeting through teleconferencing pursuant 
to this section shall do both of the following: 

(1)  Give advance notice of the time of, and post the agenda for, 
each public meeting according to the timeframes otherwise 
prescribed by this article, and using the means otherwise prescribed 
by this article, as applicable. 

(2)  In each instance in which notice of the time of the meeting 
is otherwise given or the agenda for the meeting is otherwise 
posted, also give notice of the means by which members of the 
public may observe the meeting and offer public comment. As to 
any instance in which there is a change in the means of public 
observation and comment, or any instance prior to the effective 
date of this section in which the time of the meeting has been 
noticed or the agenda for the meeting has been posted without also 
including notice of the means of public observation and comment, 
a state body may satisfy this requirement by advertising the means 
of public observation and comment using the most rapid means 
of communication available at the time. Advertising the means of 
public observation and comment using the most rapid means of 
communication available at the time shall include, but need not 
be limited to, posting such means on the state body’s internet 
website. 

(f)  All state bodies utilizing the teleconferencing procedures in 
this section are urged to use sound discretion and to make 
reasonable efforts to adhere as closely as reasonably possible to 
the otherwise applicable provisions of this article, in order to 

93 

— 10 — AB 361 

  



maximize transparency and provide the public access to state body 
meetings. 

(g)  This section shall remain in effect only until January 31, 
2022, and as of that date is repealed. 

SEC. 3. Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended 
to read: 

54953. (a)  All meetings of the legislative body of a local 
agency shall be open and public, and all persons shall be permitted 
to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local agency, 
except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b)  (1)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the 
legislative body of a local agency may use teleconferencing for 
the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local agency 
in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. 
The teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all 
otherwise applicable requirements of this chapter and all otherwise 
applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting 
or proceeding. 

(2)  Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used 
for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. All votes taken during 
a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3)  If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use 
teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference 
locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that 
protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the 
public appearing before the legislative body of a local agency. 
Each teleconference location shall be identified in the notice and 
agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, 
at least a quorum of the members of the legislative body shall 
participate from locations within the boundaries of the territory 
over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as 
provided in subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an 
opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4)  For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a 
meeting of a legislative body, the members of which are in different 
locations, connected by electronic means, through either audio or 

93 

AB 361 — 11 — 

  



video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c)  (1)  No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, 
whether preliminary or final. 

(2)  The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report 
any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each 
member present for the action. 

(3)  Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally 
report a summary of a recommendation for a final action on the 
salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of 
fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in 
subdivision (d) of Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in 
which the final action is to be taken. This paragraph shall not affect 
the public’s right under the California Public Records Act (Chapter 
3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to 
inspect or copy records created or received in the process of 
developing the recommendation. 

(d)  (1)  Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), if a health authority conducts a 
teleconference meeting, members who are outside the jurisdiction 
of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a 
quorum when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 
percent of the number of members that would establish a quorum 
are present within the boundaries of the territory over which the 
authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides 
a teleconference number, and associated access codes, if any, that 
allows any person to call in to participate in the meeting and the 
number and access codes are identified in the notice and agenda 
of the meeting. 

(2)  Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as 
discouraging health authority members from regularly meeting at 
a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the authority or 
from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction 
of the authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is 
established pursuant to this subdivision shall be subject to all other 
requirements of this section. 

(3)  For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means 
any entity created pursuant to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 
14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the Welfare 
and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant 

93 

— 12 — AB 361 

  



to Article 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of 
Division 7 for the purpose of contracting pursuant to Section 
14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to 
Chapter 2.2 (commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the 
Health and Safety Code if the advisory committee has 12 or more 
members. 

(e)  (1)  A local agency may use teleconferencing without 
complying with the requirements of paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements of 
paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following 
circumstances: 

(A)  The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed 
state of emergency, and state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing. 

(B)  The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed 
state of emergency for the purpose of determining, by majority 
vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person 
would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C)  The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed 
state of emergency and has determined, by majority vote, pursuant 
to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the emergency, meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees. 

(2)  A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this 
subdivision shall do all of the following: 

(A)  The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and 
post agendas as otherwise required by this chapter. 

(B)  The legislative body shall allow members of the public to 
access the meeting and the agenda shall provide an opportunity 
for members of the public to address the legislative body directly 
pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of 
the time of the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the 
agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, the legislative body 
shall also give notice of the means by which members of the public 
may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda 
shall identify and include an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option. This 
subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 

93 

AB 361 — 13 — 

  



to provide a physical location from which the public may attend 
or comment. 

(C)  The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings 
in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of 
the parties and the public appearing before the legislative body of 
a local agency. 

(D)  In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency 
from broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the 
call-in option or internet-based service option, or in the event of 
a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents 
members of the public from offering public comments using the 
call-in option or internet-based service option, the body shall take 
no further action on items appearing on the meeting agenda until 
public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based 
service option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during 
a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting 
the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 54960.1. 

(E)  The legislative body shall not require public comments to 
be submitted in advance of the meeting and must provide an 
opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer 
comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed 
to require the legislative body to provide a physical location from 
which the public may attend or comment. 

(F)  Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to 
provide public comment through the use of an internet website, or 
other online platform, not under the control of the local legislative 
body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may 
be required to register as required by the third-party internet 
website or online platform to participate. 

(G)  (i)  A legislative body that provides a timed public comment 
period for each agenda item shall not close the public comment 
period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to register, pursuant 
to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed 
public comment period has elapsed. 

(ii)  A legislative body that does not provide a timed public 
comment period, but takes public comment separately on each 
agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time per agenda 
item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public 
comment, including time for members of the public to register 

93 

— 14 — AB 361 

  



pursuant to subparagraph (F), or otherwise be recognized for the 
purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii)  A legislative body that provides a timed general public 
comment period that does not correspond to a specific agenda item 
shall not close the public comment period or the opportunity to 
register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general 
public comment period has elapsed. 

(3)  If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local 
officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote 
social distancing, in order to continue to teleconference without 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 
body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the 
first time pursuant to subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph 
(1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the following findings by 
majority vote: 

(A)  The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of 
the state of emergency. 

(B)  Any of the following circumstances exist: 
(i)  The state of emergency continues to directly impact the 

ability of the members to meet safely in person. 
(ii)  State or local officials continue to impose or recommend 

measures to promote social distancing. 
(4)  For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” 

means a state of emergency proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 
of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 (commencing 
with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

(f)  This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, 
and as of that date is repealed. 

SEC. 3.1. Section 54953 of the Government Code is amended 
to read: 

54953. (a)  All meetings of the legislative body of a local 
agency shall be open and public, and all persons shall be permitted 
to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local agency in 
person, except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies 
shall conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with 
applicable state and federal civil rights laws, including, but not 
limited to, any applicable language access and other 
nondiscrimination obligations. 

(b)  (1)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the 
legislative body of a local agency may use teleconferencing for 

93 

AB 361 — 15 — 

  



the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local agency 
in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. 
The teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all 
otherwise applicable requirements of this chapter and all otherwise 
applicable provisions of law relating to a specific type of meeting 
or proceeding. 

(2)  Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used 
for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. All votes taken during 
a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3)  If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use 
teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference 
locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that 
protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the 
public appearing before the legislative body of a local agency. 
Each teleconference location shall be identified in the notice and 
agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, 
at least a quorum of the members of the legislative body shall 
participate from locations within the boundaries of the territory 
over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as 
provided in subdivisions (d) and (e). The agenda shall provide an 
opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4)  For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a 
meeting of a legislative body, the members of which are in different 
locations, connected by electronic means, through either audio or 
video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c)  (1)  No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, 
whether preliminary or final. 

(2)  The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report 
any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each 
member present for the action. 

(3)  Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally 
report a summary of a recommendation for a final action on the 
salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of 
fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in 
subdivision (d) of Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in 

93 

— 16 — AB 361 

  



which the final action is to be taken. This paragraph shall not affect 
the public’s right under the California Public Records Act (Chapter 
3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to 
inspect or copy records created or received in the process of 
developing the recommendation. 

(d)  (1)  Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), if a health authority conducts a 
teleconference meeting, members who are outside the jurisdiction 
of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a 
quorum when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 
percent of the number of members that would establish a quorum 
are present within the boundaries of the territory over which the 
authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides 
a teleconference number, and associated access codes, if any, that 
allows any person to call in to participate in the meeting and the 
number and access codes are identified in the notice and agenda 
of the meeting. 

(2)  Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as 
discouraging health authority members from regularly meeting at 
a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the authority or 
from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction 
of the authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is 
established pursuant to this subdivision shall be subject to all other 
requirements of this section. 

(3)  For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means 
any entity created pursuant to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 
14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the Welfare 
and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant 
to Article 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of 
Division 7 for the purpose of contracting pursuant to Section 
14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to 
Chapter 2.2 (commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the 
Health and Safety Code if the advisory committee has 12 or more 
members. 

(e)  (1)  A local agency may use teleconferencing without 
complying with the requirements of paragraph (3) of subdivision 
(b) if the legislative body complies with the requirements of 
paragraph (2) of this subdivision in any of the following 
circumstances: 

93 

AB 361 — 17 — 

  



(A)  The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed 
state of emergency, and state or local officials have imposed or 
recommended measures to promote social distancing. 

(B)  The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed 
state of emergency for the purpose of determining, by majority 
vote, whether as a result of the emergency, meeting in person 
would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. 

(C)  The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed 
state of emergency and has determined, by majority vote, pursuant 
to subparagraph (B), that, as a result of the emergency, meeting 
in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of 
attendees. 

(2)  A legislative body that holds a meeting pursuant to this 
subdivision shall do all of the following: 

(A)  The legislative body shall give notice of the meeting and 
post agendas as otherwise required by this chapter. 

(B)  The legislative body shall allow members of the public to 
access the meeting and the agenda shall provide an opportunity 
for members of the public to address the legislative body directly 
pursuant to Section 54954.3. In each instance in which notice of 
the time of the teleconferenced meeting is otherwise given or the 
agenda for the meeting is otherwise posted, the legislative body 
shall also give notice of the means by which members of the public 
may access the meeting and offer public comment. The agenda 
shall identify and include an opportunity for all persons to attend 
via a call-in option or an internet-based service option. This 
subparagraph shall not be construed to require the legislative body 
to provide a physical location from which the public may attend 
or comment. 

(C)  The legislative body shall conduct teleconference meetings 
in a manner that protects the statutory and constitutional rights of 
the parties and the public appearing before the legislative body of 
a local agency. 

(D)  In the event of a disruption which prevents the public agency 
from broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using the 
call-in option or internet-based service option, or in the event of 
a disruption within the local agency’s control which prevents 
members of the public from offering public comments using the 
call-in option or internet-based service option, the body shall take 
no further action on items appearing on the meeting agenda until 

93 

— 18 — AB 361 

  



public access to the meeting via the call-in option or internet-based 
service option is restored. Actions taken on agenda items during 
a disruption which prevents the public agency from broadcasting 
the meeting may be challenged pursuant to Section 54960.1. 

(E)  The legislative body shall not require public comments to 
be submitted in advance of the meeting and must provide an 
opportunity for the public to address the legislative body and offer 
comment in real time. This subparagraph shall not be construed 
to require the legislative body to provide a physical location from 
which the public may attend or comment. 

(F)  Notwithstanding Section 54953.3, an individual desiring to 
provide public comment through the use of an internet website, or 
other online platform, not under the control of the local legislative 
body, that requires registration to log in to a teleconference may 
be required to register as required by the third-party internet 
website or online platform to participate. 

(G)  (i)  A legislative body that provides a timed public comment 
period for each agenda item shall not close the public comment 
period for the agenda item, or the opportunity to register, pursuant 
to subparagraph (F), to provide public comment until that timed 
public comment period has elapsed. 

(ii)  A legislative body that does not provide a timed public 
comment period, but takes public comment separately on each 
agenda item, shall allow a reasonable amount of time per agenda 
item to allow public members the opportunity to provide public 
comment, including time for members of the public to register 
pursuant to subparagraph (F), or otherwise be recognized for the 
purpose of providing public comment. 

(iii)  A legislative body that provides a timed general public 
comment period that does not correspond to a specific agenda item 
shall not close the public comment period or the opportunity to 
register, pursuant to subparagraph (F), until the timed general 
public comment period has elapsed. 

(3)  If a state of emergency remains active, or state or local 
officials have imposed or recommended measures to promote 
social distancing, in order to continue to teleconference without 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), the legislative 
body shall, not later than 30 days after teleconferencing for the 
first time pursuant to subparagraph (A), (B), or (C) of paragraph 

93 

AB 361 — 19 — 

  



(1), and every 30 days thereafter, make the following findings by 
majority vote: 

(A)  The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of 
the state of emergency. 

(B)  Any of the following circumstances exist: 
(i)  The state of emergency continues to directly impact the 

ability of the members to meet safely in person. 
(ii)  State or local officials continue to impose or recommend 

measures to promote social distancing. 
(4)  For the purposes of this subdivision, “state of emergency” 

means a state of emergency proclaimed pursuant to Section 8625 
of the California Emergency Services Act (Article 1 (commencing 
with Section 8550) of Chapter 7 of Division 1 of Title 2). 

(f)  This section shall remain in effect only until January 1, 2024, 
and as of that date is repealed. 

SEC. 4. Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to 
read: 

54953. (a)  All meetings of the legislative body of a local 
agency shall be open and public, and all persons shall be permitted 
to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local agency, 
except as otherwise provided in this chapter. 

(b)  (1)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the 
legislative body of a local agency may use teleconferencing for 
the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local agency 
in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. 
The teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all 
requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions 
of law relating to a specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2)  Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used 
for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. All votes taken during 
a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

(3)  If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use 
teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference 
locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that 
protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the 
public appearing before the legislative body of a local agency. 
Each teleconference location shall be identified in the notice and 
agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, 

93 

— 20 — AB 361 

  



at least a quorum of the members of the legislative body shall 
participate from locations within the boundaries of the territory 
over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as 
provided in subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an 
opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4)  For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a 
meeting of a legislative body, the members of which are in different 
locations, connected by electronic means, through either audio or 
video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations 

(c)  (1)  No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, 
whether preliminary or final. 

(2)  The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report 
any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each 
member present for the action. 

(3)  Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally 
report a summary of a recommendation for a final action on the 
salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of 
fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in 
subdivision (d) of Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in 
which the final action is to be taken. This paragraph shall not affect 
the public’s right under the California Public Records Act (Chapter 
3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to 
inspect or copy records created or received in the process of 
developing the recommendation. 

(d)  (1)  Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), if a health authority conducts a 
teleconference meeting, members who are outside the jurisdiction 
of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a 
quorum when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 
percent of the number of members that would establish a quorum 
are present within the boundaries of the territory over which the 
authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides 
a teleconference number, and associated access codes, if any, that 
allows any person to call in to participate in the meeting and the 
number and access codes are identified in the notice and agenda 
of the meeting. 

93 

AB 361 — 21 — 

  



(2)  Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as 
discouraging health authority members from regularly meeting at 
a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the authority or 
from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction 
of the authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is 
established pursuant to this subdivision shall be subject to all other 
requirements of this section. 

(3)  For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means 
any entity created pursuant to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 
14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the Welfare 
and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant 
to Article 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of 
Division 7 for the purpose of contracting pursuant to Section 
14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to 
Chapter 2.2 (commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the 
Health and Safety Code if the advisory committee has 12 or more 
members. 

(e)  This section shall become operative January 1, 2024. 
SEC. 4.1. Section 54953 is added to the Government Code, to 

read: 
54953. (a)  All meetings of the legislative body of a local 

agency shall be open and public, and all persons shall be permitted 
to attend any meeting of the legislative body of a local agency, in 
person except as otherwise provided in this chapter. Local agencies 
shall conduct meetings subject to this chapter consistent with 
applicable state and federal civil rights laws, including, but not 
limited to, any applicable language access and other 
nondiscrimination obligations. 

(b)  (1)  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, the 
legislative body of a local agency may use teleconferencing for 
the benefit of the public and the legislative body of a local agency 
in connection with any meeting or proceeding authorized by law. 
The teleconferenced meeting or proceeding shall comply with all 
requirements of this chapter and all otherwise applicable provisions 
of law relating to a specific type of meeting or proceeding. 

(2)  Teleconferencing, as authorized by this section, may be used 
for all purposes in connection with any meeting within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of the legislative body. All votes taken during 
a teleconferenced meeting shall be by rollcall. 

93 

— 22 — AB 361 

  



(3)  If the legislative body of a local agency elects to use 
teleconferencing, it shall post agendas at all teleconference 
locations and conduct teleconference meetings in a manner that 
protects the statutory and constitutional rights of the parties or the 
public appearing before the legislative body of a local agency. 
Each teleconference location shall be identified in the notice and 
agenda of the meeting or proceeding, and each teleconference 
location shall be accessible to the public. During the teleconference, 
at least a quorum of the members of the legislative body shall 
participate from locations within the boundaries of the territory 
over which the local agency exercises jurisdiction, except as 
provided in subdivision (d). The agenda shall provide an 
opportunity for members of the public to address the legislative 
body directly pursuant to Section 54954.3 at each teleconference 
location. 

(4)  For the purposes of this section, “teleconference” means a 
meeting of a legislative body, the members of which are in different 
locations, connected by electronic means, through either audio or 
video, or both. Nothing in this section shall prohibit a local agency 
from providing the public with additional teleconference locations. 

(c)  (1)  No legislative body shall take action by secret ballot, 
whether preliminary or final. 

(2)  The legislative body of a local agency shall publicly report 
any action taken and the vote or abstention on that action of each 
member present for the action. 

(3)  Prior to taking final action, the legislative body shall orally 
report a summary of a recommendation for a final action on the 
salaries, salary schedules, or compensation paid in the form of 
fringe benefits of a local agency executive, as defined in 
subdivision (d) of Section 3511.1, during the open meeting in 
which the final action is to be taken. This paragraph shall not affect 
the public’s right under the California Public Records Act (Chapter 
3.5 (commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1) to 
inspect or copy records created or received in the process of 
developing the recommendation. 

(d)  (1)  Notwithstanding the provisions relating to a quorum in 
paragraph (3) of subdivision (b), if a health authority conducts a 
teleconference meeting, members who are outside the jurisdiction 
of the authority may be counted toward the establishment of a 
quorum when participating in the teleconference if at least 50 

93 

AB 361 — 23 — 

  



percent of the number of members that would establish a quorum 
are present within the boundaries of the territory over which the 
authority exercises jurisdiction, and the health authority provides 
a teleconference number, and associated access codes, if any, that 
allows any person to call in to participate in the meeting and the 
number and access codes are identified in the notice and agenda 
of the meeting. 

(2)  Nothing in this subdivision shall be construed as 
discouraging health authority members from regularly meeting at 
a common physical site within the jurisdiction of the authority or 
from using teleconference locations within or near the jurisdiction 
of the authority. A teleconference meeting for which a quorum is 
established pursuant to this subdivision shall be subject to all other 
requirements of this section. 

(3)  For purposes of this subdivision, a health authority means 
any entity created pursuant to Sections 14018.7, 14087.31, 
14087.35, 14087.36, 14087.38, and 14087.9605 of the Welfare 
and Institutions Code, any joint powers authority created pursuant 
to Article 1 (commencing with Section 6500) of Chapter 5 of 
Division 7 for the purpose of contracting pursuant to Section 
14087.3 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and any advisory 
committee to a county-sponsored health plan licensed pursuant to 
Chapter 2.2 (commencing with Section 1340) of Division 2 of the 
Health and Safety Code if the advisory committee has 12 or more 
members. 

(e)  This section shall become operative January 1, 2024. 
SEC. 5. Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill incorporate 

amendments to Section 54953 of the Government Code proposed 
by both this bill and Assembly Bill 339. Those sections of this bill 
shall only become operative if (1) both bills are enacted and 
become effective on or before January 1, 2022, but this bill 
becomes operative first, (2) each bill amends Section 54953 of the 
Government Code, and (3) this bill is enacted after Assembly Bill 
339, in which case Section 54953 of the Government Code, as 
amended by Sections 3 and 4 of this bill, shall remain operative 
only until the operative date of Assembly Bill 339, at which time 
Sections 3.1 and 4.1 of this bill shall become operative. 

SEC. 6. It is the intent of the Legislature in enacting this act 
to improve and enhance public access to state and local agency 
meetings during the COVID-19 pandemic and future applicable 

93 

— 24 — AB 361 

  



emergencies, by allowing broader access through teleconferencing 
options consistent with the Governor’s Executive Order No. 
N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, permitting expanded use of 
teleconferencing during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

SEC. 7. The Legislature finds and declares that Sections 3 and 
4 of this act, which amend, repeal, and add Section 54953 of the 
Government Code, further, within the meaning of paragraph (7) 
of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the California 
Constitution, the purposes of that constitutional section as it relates 
to the right of public access to the meetings of local public bodies 
or the writings of local public officials and local agencies. Pursuant 
to paragraph (7) of subdivision (b) of Section 3 of Article I of the 
California Constitution, the Legislature makes the following 
findings: 

This act is necessary to ensure minimum standards for public 
participation and notice requirements allowing for greater public 
participation in teleconference meetings during applicable 
emergencies. 

SEC. 8. (a)  The Legislature finds and declares that during the 
COVID-19 public health emergency, certain requirements of the 
Bagley-Keene Open Meeting Act (Article 9 (commencing with 
Section 11120) of Chapter 1 of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of 
the Government Code) were suspended by Executive Order 
N-29-20. Audio and video teleconference were widely used to 
conduct public meetings in lieu of physical location meetings, and 
public meetings conducted by teleconference during the COVID-19 
public health emergency have been productive, have increased 
public participation by all members of the public regardless of 
their location in the state and ability to travel to physical meeting 
locations, have protected the health and safety of civil servants 
and the public, and have reduced travel costs incurred by members 
of state bodies and reduced work hours spent traveling to and from 
meetings. 

(b)  The Legislature finds and declares that Section 1 of this act, 
which adds and repeals Section 89305.6 of the Education Code, 
Section 2 of this act, which adds and repeals Section 11133 of the 
Government Code, and Sections 3 and 4 of this act, which amend, 
repeal, and add Section 54953 of the Government Code, all increase 
and potentially limit the public’s right of access to the meetings 
of public bodies or the writings of public officials and agencies 

93 

AB 361 — 25 — 

  



within the meaning of Section 3 of Article I of the California 
Constitution. Pursuant to that constitutional provision, the 
Legislature makes the following findings to demonstrate the interest 
protected by this limitation and the need for protecting that interest: 

(1)  By removing the requirement that public meetings be 
conducted at a primary physical location with a quorum of 
members present, this act protects the health and safety of civil 
servants and the public and does not preference the experience of 
members of the public who might be able to attend a meeting in 
a physical location over members of the public who cannot travel 
or attend that meeting in a physical location. 

(2)  By removing the requirement for agendas to be placed at 
the location of each public official participating in a public meeting 
remotely, including from the member’s private home or hotel 
room, this act protects the personal, private information of public 
officials and their families while preserving the public’s right to 
access information concerning the conduct of the people’s business. 

SEC. 9. This act is an urgency statute necessary for the 
immediate preservation of the public peace, health, or safety within 
the meaning of Article IV of the California Constitution and shall 
go into immediate effect. The facts constituting the necessity are: 

In order to ensure that state and local agencies can continue 
holding public meetings while providing essential services like 
water, power, and fire protection to their constituents during public 
health, wildfire, or other states of emergencies, it is necessary that 
this act take effect immediately. 

93 

— 26 — AB 361 

  





Approved , 2021 

Governor 


	09.22.21 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Closed Session - Labor Negotiations
	2. Minutes - Regular Meeting 09.08.21
	3. Minimum Wage Adjustment for Part-Time Staff
	A. Resolution - Minimum Wage Adjustment 2022

	4. Grand Jury Response - Racial Identity and Profilin Act
	A. Grand Jury Response Letter - RIPA
	B. Grand Jury Report - RIPA

	5. Report on AB 631 and Executive Order Regarding Remote Meetings
	A. Assembly Bill 361




